
DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM, AND SWANLEY HEALTH 
AND WELLBEING BOARD

Please Note the Time of the Meeting
Councillor Roger Gough (Chair) 

Councillor Ann Allen 
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner

Debbie Stock 
Dr Elizabeth Lunt 

Sheri Green 
Graham Harris 

Anne Tidmarsh
Andrew Scott - Clark
Stuart Clark

Melanie Norris 
Sarah Kilkie

Lesley Bowles 

Jo Pannell

Kent County Council

Dartford Borough Council
Sevenoaks District Council
Gravesham Borough Council

DGS - CCG
DGS - CCG

Dartford Borough Council
Dartford Borough Council

Kent County Council
Kent County Council
Kent County Council

Gravesham Borough Council
Gravesham Borough Council

Sevenoaks District Council

Healthwatch

A meeting of the above Board will be held on 

Wednesday 1 February 2017 at 1.00pm in Gravesham Civic Centre, Windmill 
Street, Gravesend, Kent.  DA12 1AU

If a member of the Board is unable to attend this meeting, apologies for absence can 
be submitted to the Clerk to the meeting on 01322 343251 or by eMail to 
neil.murphy@dartford.gov.uk

Questions relating to the arrangements for meetings of the Board should be directed 
in the first instance to the Clerk

A G E N D A 
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations Of Interest 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)



The Minutes of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley 
Health and Wellbeing Board held on 7 December 2016 are attached 
for confirmation.

Issues arising from the Minutes not addressed elsewhere on the 
Agenda can be raised at this item.

4. Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 7 - 10)
The Chairman may wish to report on any issues of relevance to this 
Board arising from the meeting held on 25 January 2017

The agenda for the meeting is attached as an aide memoire. 

5. Review of Falls Prevention Actions (Pages 11 - 22)

6. DGS work to encourage greater participation in sport and physical 
activity (Pages 23 - 42)

7. Urgent Items 
The Chairman will report on any urgent item and determine its 
position on the Agenda.

8. Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings. (Pages 43 - 44)

9. Information Exchange 

10. Board Work Programme (Pages 45 - 48)



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Dartford Gravesham and Swanley Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on Wednesday 7 December 2016.

PRESENT: Councillor Roger Gough (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Ann D Allen MBE
Councillor Tony Searles
Councillor David Turner
Lesley Bowles
Sheri Green
Sarah Kilkie
Dr Elizabeth Lunt
Melanie Norris

ALSO PRESENT: Helen Buttivant, Allison Duggal, Tristan Godfrey, Val Miller, and 
Manpinder Sahota. 

27. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Debbie Stock, Graham Harris, 
Andrew Scott – Clark, Nick Moor, and Jo Pannell.

The Clerk to the Board explained that Ms Jo Pannell was the new 
representative from Healthwatch and that she would be attending from the 
next meeting onward.

28. DECLARATIONS OF  INTEREST 

There were no declarations made.

29. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Dartford, Gravesham, and Swanley Health and Wellbeing 
Board held on 25 August 2016 were confirmed as a correct record of that 
meeting.

30. KENT COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

The Chairman updated the Board on a number of issues of relevance to our 
Board which had been discussed at the two meetings of the Kent HWB held 
on 21 September and 23 November 2016

Councillor Gough reported that the 21 September meeting had spent 
considerable time looking at Outcome 3 of the Health and Wellbeing strategy 
– relating to Out of Hospital Care, and arising from this it had asked for 
reports from all local Boards on Falls prevention.to be  presented yo its March 
meeting.



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 7 DECEMBER 2016

2

Additionally arising from consideration of the HealthWatch Kent Annual 
Report Councillor Turner had asked for an update on improvements to mental 
health care which had arisen from work undertaken by HealthWatch.

The Chairman also reported that the 23 November meeting had looked at 3 
major areas of consequence to our Board: 

 The Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) which had been 
formally published on that day

 The Better Care Fund which was being reviewed in view of its poor 
performance

 Outcome 5 of the Health and Wellbeing strategy, relating to Dementia, 
its long term prevention, the management of dementia patients and 
crisis management for patients with serious dementia issues.

31. URGENT ITEMS 

There were no urgent issues for the Board to consider.

32. SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN 

Dr Elizabeth Lunt explained that in December 2015, the NHS shared planning 
guidance 16/17 – 20/21 outlined a new approach to help ensure that health 
and care services are built around the needs of local populations.  To do this, 
every health and care system in England was to produce a multi-year 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP), showing how local services will 
evolve and become sustainable over the following five years – ultimately 
delivering a Five Year Forward View vision of better health, better patient care 
and improved NHS efficiency.

In essence the plan aimed to reduce the £400million shortfall in the NHS 
budget.

Dr Lunt informed the Board that just over two weeks ago the formal 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan was published and work had 
commenced upon its formulation and implementation.

She explained that an extensive guidance document had been published and 
it was aimed to establish around 10 accountable care organisations spanning 
Kent which would form the basis of delivery for health care and that these 
would be overseen by a higher level monitoring board.

It was noted that local engagement on service provision was accepted as 
being important but that there had been no details released on that yet.

https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/futurenhs/


DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 7 DECEMBER 2016

3

Arising from the report the Board recognised the importance that prevention of 
illness would take in the future of care provision and thus in the STP 
generally. 

The Chairman thanked Dr Lunt for her report.

33. NEW DISTRICT HEALTH DEAL 

Lesley Bowles from Sevenoaks District Council and Vicki Tovey from Kent 
County Council who gave a presentation on the current structure of health 
delivery in the West Kent Area, proposals for the integration of delivery to 
achieve significant efficiencies, and the implications of this new District Health 
Deal on our Board area.

Mrs Bowles explained that the West Kent Area had established an Integration 
Board comprising the Leaders of the four Councils involved (Sevenoaks, 
Tonbridge and Malling and Royal Tunbridge Wells Districts together with Kent 
County Council) with meetings also being attended by the three District Chief 
Executives and Kent County Council Officers

The Board’s aims were to:

• Retain the individual sovereignty of the four councils

• Save money by taking out waste and duplication, and

• Develop structures that enable services to be co-commissioned, 
delegated or devolved.

It was noted that the new delivery model which has been developed by the 
West Kent Integration Board would deliver significant financial benefits and 
would better serve the population of the areas concerned.  Additionally the 
structure developed may be integrated for use by other area wide services 
such as housing.

It was explained that the introduction of a new model of Health Delivery in our 
Board area would deliver service improvements and savings and that the 
Health and Wellbeing Board’s involvement in this process was highly 
desirable.

The Chairman reported that discussions were already underway in our area 
(the North Kent Cluster) but were not as far developed as West Kent, and 
accordingly it was agreed to receive a report on this matter once further 
progress had been made.

34. LOCAL CHILDREN'S PARTNERSHIP GROUPS 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 7 DECEMBER 2016

4

The Board received a short report on the work of the Local Children’s 
Partnership Groups, and agreed that individual questions would be forwarded 
to Mr Moor the report author. 

35. FEEDBACK FROM LGA WORKSHOP. 

The Board received a report on the outcomes of the LGA development 
workshop held on 25 August 2016.  

It was noted that a number of suggestions for the future format of board 
meetings had arisen from the workshop and that these had been reviewed by 
the Chairman and Officers and the following recommendations formulated:

 Future meetings to be kept more focused. Main agenda items at each 
meeting to be planned so as to be on a common theme or a couple of 
linked themes;

 Any ‘standing items’ coming to the DGS HWB meetings to generally be 
‘taken as read’ and dealt with concisely so as to allow greater focus on the 
other parts of the agenda and on meaningful and productive partnership 
working;

 To invite additional persons, authorities and organisations to attend 
specific Board meetings where it is thought that they could usefully 
contribute 

 Greater engagement by Adult Social Care with the DGS HWB would be 
beneficial; 

 Make greater use of the synergies and linkages between DGS HWB and 
other partnership groups -such as the Community Safety Partnerships;

 The formal meetings of the DGS HWB to be supplemented with separately 
convened workshops where practical themes and issues can be 
considered and taken forward by relevant Board members, partners and 
practitioners. 

The Board, having considered the points, agreed to adopt the 
recommendations as the basis for the future work of the Board

36. PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS 2017 - 2018 

The Board received a report on a proposed programme of meetings for the 
forthcoming year – 2017 / 18.

Members expressed some concerns that the programme followed a pattern 
established some time ago and that amendments to the format of Board 



DARTFORD GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

WEDNESDAY 7 DECEMBER 2016

5

meetings may impact on the programme both in terms of dates of meetings 
and times of the day which they were scheduled.

Accordingly it was agreed that the Clerk to the Board conduct a canvass of 
Board Members and attendees to ascertain their future availabilities, and 
subsequently the Chairman would approve a programme for the future.

37. ACTIONS OUTSTANDING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS. 

The Board received and noted a report on issues outstanding from previous 
meetings.

38. BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 

The Board considered a report on its updated programme of work for the 
forthcoming year. 

It was noted that the work plan had been amended in the light of comments 
arising from the August meeting with a shorter duration meeting scheduled for 
February with an item on Falls Prevention being added to that meeting and 
the scheduled reports on Mental Health issues being transferred to the April 
meeting.

A workshop event would now be held following the truncated February 
meeting focussing on Obesity.   It was noted that Helen Buttivant was to lead 
on the Obesity workshop.

39. INFORMATION EXCHANGE 

The Board noted that there was no information requiring dissemination.





AGENDA

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Wednesday, 25th January, 2017, at 6.30 pm Ask for: Ann Hunter

Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416287

Refreshments will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

Membership 

Dr F Armstrong, Mr I Ayres, Dr B Bowes (Vice-Chairman), Ms H Carpenter, 
Mr P B Carter, CBE, Dr S Chaudhuri, Ms F Cox, Ms P Davies, Mr G K Gibbens, 
Mr R W Gough (Chairman), Mr S Inett, Mr A Ireland, Dr N Kumta, Dr E Lunt, Dr T Martin, 
Mr P J Oakford, Mr S Perks, Dr S Phillips, Cllr K Pugh, Mr A Scott-Clark, Dr R Stewart, 
Cllr P Watkins and Cllr L Weatherly

Webcasting Notice

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for the live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council’s internet site or by any member of the public or press present.   The Chairman will 
confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council.

By entering into this room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to have 
your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1 Chairman's Welcome 
 

2 Apologies and Substitutes 

To receive apologies for absence and notification of any 
substitutes

3 Declarations of Interest by Members in items on the agenda for this meeting 



To receive any declarations of Interest by Members in items on 
the agenda for the meeting

4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 November 2016 (Pages 5 - 14)

To receive and agree the minutes of the last meeting

5 Update from the Kent Drug and Alcohol Partnership (Pages 15 - 24)

To receive a report that provides information about changes to 
the governance of the Kent Drug and Alcohol Partnership, the 
latest Kent drug and alcohol strategy which is out for public 
consultation and summarises the key findings from the recently 
completed health needs assessments for drugs and alcohol

6 Better Care Fund 2017/19 (Pages 25 - 28)

To receive an update on the requirements for the Kent Better 
Care Fund Plan 2017-19

7 Health and Wellbeing Strategy: Update Outcome 1 Every Child has the Best 
Start in Life (Pages 29 - 36)

To receive an update on indicators associated with outcome 1 
“every child has the best start in life” of the Kent Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy

8 Update report on the Children's Integrated Commissioning Project (Pages 37 
- 42)

To receive an overview and update on the progress so far of the 
Children’s Integrated Commissioning Project in North Kent

9 Kent and Medway Safeguarding Adults Board - Annual Report 2015/16 
(Pages 43 - 94)

To receive and note the annual report for 2015/16

10 Kent Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme - 2017 (Pages 95 - 98)

To agree the Forward Work Programme.

11 Minutes of the Children's Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 99 - 104)

To note the minutes of the Children’s Health and Wellbeing 



Board held on 20 September 2016

12 Minutes of the Local Health and Wellbeing Boards (Pages 105 - 132)

To note the minutes of local health and wellbeing boards as 
follows:

Canterbury and Coastal – 9 November 2016
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley – 7 December 2016
South Kent Coast – 20 September and 23 November 2016
Thanet – 10 November 2016
West Kent – 20 December 2016

13 Date of Next Meeting - 22 March 2017 
 

EXEMPT ITEMS
(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 

which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

John Lynch
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 410466

Tuesday, 17 January 2017





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Anna Willson - DGS CCG & Karen Shaw – KCC Public Health

Subject: Falls update  

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:

This paper aims to update the group on the work undertaken in DGS with regards to Falls and 
follows on form the last paper sent to the group in August 2016

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Review the update and feedback any comments or requests to the CCG/KCC.

1. Background and discussion

The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and Public Health have been collaboratively reviewing the 
Falls pathway within Dartford, Gravesham & Swanley (DGS). This paper aims to update the group 
further to the report presented in August 2016 and clarify any further progress.

Below is an updated summary of the work that continues within DGS, as well as any new 
developments since the last report to the group:

 Community Falls service – A therapy led community service consisting of Occupational 
Therapists, Physiotherapists and healthcare assistants has been in existence since early 
2014 and the CCG will shortly be meeting with local providers to agree the future funding 
for the team. A revised set of KPIs were agreed and are reported to the CCG every month, 
as well as the estimated financial savings which are currently being verified by the CCG. 
The falls team are averaging 71 new referrals a month, most of which come from Primary 
Care and the Acute Trust.

 Launch of Acute frailty pathways, ambulatory care unit and ageing health clinics 
(ongoing) - Darent Valley Hospital continue to offer a number of new pathways designed to 
internally streamline the patient’s journey through the hospital and ensure they are dealt 
with in the appropriate way. The Trust have 2 dedicated frailty nurses who are responsible 
for pro-actively risk assessing frail patients and offering them a comprehensive geriatric 
assessment should this be required. We continue to work with the Trust to retrieve data to 
show the impact of the new pathways.

A recent case study from the falls team is below for information:

A 96 year old Patient was referred to the Falls Team by the GP following identification of recurrent falls and 
remaining at high risk of falls. Patient was complaining of dizziness on the initial assessment and was also 
identified as being on more than 4 different types of medication, one being an anti-hypertensive. A 
discussion was completed with the patients GP and it was agreed for the Impact nurses to complete a review 



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

2

of the patients BP and also take a urine and blood sample. The BP was reviewed over a three day period 
and feedback given to the GP. It was identified that the patient was dehydrated and also had postural-
hypotension. The GP adjusted the patients medication and the Impact team supported the patient for 
dehydration. OT input from the falls team facilitated chair raisers to enable safer/easier chair transfers, a bath 
board to assist with safer bath transfers, a toilet raise to assist with toilet transfers and a kitchen trolley to 
assist with carrying objects. OT input also helped to inform and educate the patient on non-risk taking 
behaviour and appropriate techniques within the home to reduce the risk of falls as a result of overreaching 
and bending down. Physio input has provided the patient with strength and balance exercises within the 
home to help maintain the strength and balance that the patient has, and to help reduce the risk of further 
falls. Patient now feels more confident within the home, is continuing with the exercises and not reported 
any further falls. The patient has reported a couple of near misses in which they has been able to stabilise 
themselves and prevent a fall from occurring. Physio input is continuing at present.

Update on the Falls ‘Hub’ Kent Public Health – KCC Public health implemented a single point of 
referral for postural stability classes to collate and monitor referrals - this service now sits within 
Public Health team directly and has a dedicated administrator who monitors all referrals coming 
into the programme. Where applicable, all referrals both from the general public and other 
stakeholders goes directly to the ‘Single Point of Referral' where referrals are then triaged 
accordingly and directed to either PS classes or directly to a Falls Prevention service for a more 
comprehensive assessment, which could also involve housing and medication reviews 

 There has been progress with the online referral route, and PH are looking to pilot the 
referral process into the Postural Stability Classes. Working with the KCC Digital Service 
Team, an online referral form was developed with the intention to help in reduce 
inappropriate and illegible referrals as well as making it easily accessible for practitioners 
and other stakeholders to make referrals easier. 

 This online form is not intended to be the only route, the standard referral form is still 
acceptable, however we do urge partners to utilise the online form as it is more of a 
streamline process. The online process has a function which automatically forward client 
details to the most appropriate provider depending on where they live and the nearest 
classes. 

 The link is now live but changes can still be made to it and when needed. PH are 
encouraging partners to test out the online process by sending through a ‘test’ client 
thereby giving an understanding of how it works and if you have any queries or comments 
to please send those through as well. If there are any comments on this process or anyone 
interested in piloting this before PH promotes it further. Please contact Laura Bush via 
email laura.bush@kent.gov.uk by 03rd February 2017.  

The digital form can be accessed via this link 
https://kentcc.firmstep.com/default.aspx/RenderForm/?F.Name=PVBgo2znQ2V&HideAll=1
Please note: When sending test referrals please use ‘Test’ as the client’s name. 

mailto:laura.bush@kent.gov.uk
https://kentcc.firmstep.com/default.aspx/RenderForm/?F.Name=PVBgo2znQ2V&HideAll=1


DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

3

Postural stability classes –  In April 2015 Kent Public Health commissioned postural stability 
classes across Kent, the current contracts provided by the following providers covering the 
listed areas will end on the 31st March 2017.

 Involve covering ; Dartford, Gravesend, Maidstone, Snodland
 Kent Community Health Foundation Trust covering;  Dover, Folkestone, Thanet, 

Canterbury, Swale, Ashford
 Good Neighbour covering;  Tonbridge, Tunbridge Wells, Sevenoaks

 New opportunities to run further classes was advertised in November 2016 on the Kent 
County Council Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) which allows the Council to 
commission Public Health Services from a list of approved providers who meet the set 
minimum standards for these classes. The PS programmes were procured with the 
available budget; therefore certain geographical areas across Kent were merged as follows; 

 Tonbridge/Tunbridge Wells, 
 Sevenoaks/Dartford, 
 Maidstone/Gravesend/Snodland, 
 Folkestone/Dover, 
 Thanet and Swale

 The current waiting lists within these areas had more than 10 prospective participants 
except for Swale as the waiting list was very low (less than 5), therefore the procurement 
process has now taken place for additional classes within the areas.  The new contracts 
were awarded as follows;

Involve were awarded the following areas
 Dartford/Sevenoaks , 
 Tunbridge Wells/Tonbridge and 
 Maidstone/Gravesend/snodland

KCHFT were awarded the following areas; 
 Dover/Folkestone, 
 Thanet and 
 Canterbury/Ashford

 Classes for these new contracts are scheduled to commence in February 2017 depandent 
on the respective areas and the provider.  Potential clients can be still be booked onto the 
classes up to week 12 after the start of the classes, therefore Public Health are 
encouraging partners to still make referrals using the attached current referral form, or the 
new digital form available via link below:
 https://kentcc.firmstep.com/default.aspx/RenderForm/?F.Name=PVBgo2znQ2V&HideAll=1 

https://kentcc.firmstep.com/default.aspx/RenderForm/?F.Name=PVBgo2znQ2V&HideAll=1


DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

4

Integrated falls pilot with Kent Fire & Rescue Service (KFRS) – The CCG, Public 
Health and the community falls service continue to work with the Home Care Team at 
KFRS to deliver an integrated falls pilot. Pathways were established to allow the team 
within KFRS to risk assess people in DGS they felt were at risk of falls and refer them to 
the falls hub in public health. Patients are offered support based on their needs – this may 
be access to community postural stability classes, social care, voluntary organisation 
support or a detailed intervention from the community falls service. The pilot started on 9th 
November 2015 and following a meeting in early 2016 to review progress, KFRS agreed to 
continue with the initiative throughout 2016 with the possibility of expanding the process to 
other teams within KFRS. 

 Polypharmacy reduction – The CCG continues to monitor polypharmacy prescribing in 
DGS. The link between the high number of repeat prescribed items and falls is proven, so 
we believe the review of unnecessary prescribing will help to reduce falls in the local area. 
The CCG have also recently agreed to fund a care home support team to focus on 
palliative support for care home patients. As part of this team have employed a Pharmacist 
who will be responsible for undertaking medication reviews on nearly a thousand nursing 
home patients. We hope this will also contribute to decreasing unnecessary polypharmacy, 
which should in turn help to reduce falls further. 

 Care home provider forum – The provider forums are managed by KCC and attended by 
care home/extra care housing managers & staff. We have held 5 forums so far since the 
re-launch and the CCG has previously arranged for the community falls service to present 
to the homes. We aim to ask the falls team lead to present to the homes again over the 
coming months and continue to push the ‘falls agenda’ at the care home forum meetings.

 Review of falls/frailty pathways and services within DGS – The CCG is in the process 
of reviewing the falls and frailty pathways and the services available in primary, community 
and acute care. We are keen to work with our providers locally, as well as KCC and Public 
Health when required, to develop falls and frailty services in more detail. As this work 
progresses the CCG will keep the group updated, however we are still currently in the 
scoping and costing phase.

 Improved links with District Council Housing – The CCG lead commissioner, 
community falls service lead and falls lead from Public Health met last year with the 
Dartford and Sevenoaks District Council housing team to discuss our work with falls. This 
meeting was set up following feedback at the Kent wide falls group where it was noted that 
the housing teams are not fully engaged with the community falls team. This meeting 
proved beneficial to not only network, but to firm up the referral process between the two 
services. It is hoped further meetings with other Councils can be arranged in due course, 
but as yet, none have been actively scheduled. 

2. Conclusion and Recommendations

The CCG continue to collect data relating to acute activity for falls via our data warehouse called 
HISBi and directly from the Acute Trust. The charts below summarise activity at Darent Valley 
Hospital for DGS patients with regards to falls, although there is currently a data issue with the A&E 
attendances which we hope to have rectified in the coming weeks:



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

5

A&E attendances for Falls (excluding attendances for head injury or limb problems)

148 149

189

145

201

169 168 173

154 159
173

201
189

209

174 168

250 253

319

260

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2015/16
2016/17



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

6

Short stay non elective admissions due to a fall (24 hours or less) 

69

83
80

97

83

75

107

66

57

50
46

78

58

79

43

82

72
67

60

39 40

47
43

60

41

53

34

50

64
59

67
62

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Short-Stay NEL 
14/15

Short-Stay NEL 
15/16

Short-Stay NEL 
16/17



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

7

Long stay non elective admissions due to a fall 

63 64

47

55
58

65

49
52

58

63

42

52

57

53

57

43 43

77

52
54

46

38

60

73

45

69

64

43

53

59

64

68

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Long-Stay NEL 
14/15
Long-Stay NEL 
15/16
Long-Stay NEL 
16/17



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

8

As you can see from the data above, the activity continues to fluctuate month on month; however, 
the following is true:

 A&E attendances do fluctuate month on month and we are working on the quality of the data 
we produce, however we appear to have seen an increase of nearly 500 attendances 
when compared to the same point last year 

 There has been a reduction of 70 short stay emergency admissions when compared to 
the same point last year  

 There has been a slight increase of 30 long stay emergency admissions when compared 
to the same point last year 

It appears our work on falls has dropped off slightly in terms of acute activity which is 
disappointing, although assumptions are made that should a patient fall and attend DVH the 
pathways they now follow within the Trust have been improved. As well as this, we continue to see 
a reduction is short stay admissions, which is promising. The continued increase in A&E 
attendances is worrying and confirms there is more work to do to try and address how and why 
people are falling in the first place.

All work streams identified above will continue into 2017/18 and the CCG will be working closely 
with a number of local providers to focus more on falls prevention within DGS. 

3. Contact details

Anna Willson – Commissioning Project Manager for Dartford, Gravesham & Swanley CCG. 
Email Anna.Willson@nhs.net or call 03000 424912

Karen Shaw – Programme Manager for Public Health, Kent County Council. Email 
Karen.Shaw@Kent.gov.uk or call 03000 416671

4. Background Papers

None

mailto:Anna.Willson@nhs.net
mailto:Karen.Shaw@kent.gov.uk


DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

February 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

9





FALLS PREVENTION - POSTURAL STABILITY PROGRAMME REFERRAL FORM 
Client Details (Please complete ALL fields, unless stated otherwise)

Name: ………………………………………………………...........NHS Number (if known):………………………………

Age:  ……………………………   Address:………………………………………………………………………..

Postcode: …………………………………  Tel. No:………………………………………………………………………….

GP Name: ………………………………..   GP Surgery:………………………………………………………………………
** Has Client consented to the following;
Sharing of data Yes  ☐  No ☐,    Referral to Single Point of Access Yes  ☐  No ☐  Taking part in weekly exercise?    Yes  ☐ No ☐
Reason for Referral

Yes No

Is there a history of any fall in the previous year (injurious and non-injurious)?
Please also include number of ambulance call outs made for falls.

Is the person on 4 or more medications per day?
Please list prescribed medications

Date of last medication review 

Does the person have a diagnosis of stroke or Parkinson’s Disease or other physical 
conditions? Please specify

Does the client report any problems with their balance or feel they may fall? 

Is the person able to rise from a knee-height chair without using their arms?Ask the client to stand up 
from a chair of knee height without using their arms to do so

*** Does the person have a fear of falling?

Is there any medical or health condition that would affect the ability of this person undertaking exercise

Comments

Additional Information 
Referral from KFRS? Yes  ☐  No ☐
Referral from Falls Service? Yes  ☐  No ☐          
Referral from MTW? Yes☐    No☐

Previous 

Screening due to fall?  Yes  ☐  No ☐      

Taking calcium supplement? Yes☐    No☐

Please return this form to Single Referral Point via the secured fax or email:
Tel: 03000 410705     Fax: 03000 422840     Email: fallsprevention@kent.gov.uk 

TO BE COMPLETED BY SINGLE POINT OF REFERRAL
Client consents to referral ☐     Client meets referral criteria ☐     Copy of form and covering letter sent to GP ☐ 
Allocated Referral No. :………………………….

*** Added by Public Health and is excluded from final scoring. This should still be identified as at risk of falling and referred on to the service. 
** This includes information being shared securely to Kent County Council, Single referral point for appropriate onward referral, the 
postural stability providers. This data will be handled securely and in line with KCC Information Governance and Data Protection policies
Version 2.2– updated  June  2016

Referrer Details
Name of referrer: Job Title:
Address:
Signature: Date:

mailto:fallsprevention@kent.gov.uk


Client Consent to Use Personal Information

I, ………………………….………………………………..…hereby give my written consent
(Print name)

to allow  

…..………………………………………………………………………..……………………... 
(Provider / Trainer (print name)) 

to collect information during my attendance at the Postural Stability classes and for follow up 
information to be collected at regular intervals after the classes have been completed to 
monitor my progress. I therefore have no objection to providing contact details specifically for 
this purpose.

Yes/No
I agree that the information collected in the referral form and during the classes can be used 
by Kent County Council Public Health to improve the referral system as well as, the outcomes 
and effectiveness of postural stability classes. Your information will be stored so you are 
anonymous. It will be linked to your information from other parts of the health service and 
social care. Your information will be used by Kent County Council and the NHS to improve 
the services they provide.

Yes/No
In addition, I agree for my details to be passed to Adult Social Care or other Health Care 
professionals in the event I may need further assistance.

Yes/No
You may withdraw your consent at any time.

…………………………………………………………….
(Signature)

…………………………………………………………….
(Date)



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

1 FEBRUARY 2017
Agenda Item 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group 

Subject: DGS work to encourage greater participation in sport and physical 
activity 

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report summarises the work of the three districts to encourage local residents to 
have a greater participation in sport and physical activity.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the contents of this report.

1. Background and discussion

1.1 The Board has previously agreed that it will receive regular update reports on 
thematic work of the three districts as part of local Health Inequalities Action Plans, 
monitored through local partnerships. 

1.2 This report demonstrates the interventions and outcomes being delivered to 
encourage a greater participation in sport and other physical activity sessions, 
details at Appendix 1.

2. Overview of Physical Activity

2.1 Physical inactivity is directly responsible for a range of non-communicable disease 
conditions including coronary heart disease, type 2 diabetes, breast and colon 
cancers.  An inactive person will spend 38% more days in hospital and requires 
5.5% more GP visits than an active person.

2.2 The annual cost of physical inactivity to the national economy is estimated as £20bn 
per year, the annual cost to local authorities in Kent is calculated to just over 
£264million.

2.3 In Kent 28.37% of adults are currently physically inactive; slightly higher than the 
national average of 27.73%.  The data for the Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley 
CCG area shows that 27.29% of Dartford, 29.11% of Gravesham and 20.90% of 
Sevenoaks District adults are currently physically inactive (Source: 2015 Kent 
JSNA).



DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

1 FEBRUARY 2017
Agenda Item 

______________________________________________________________________________

2

2.4 As part of the Kent County Council Public Health locality funding, district councils 
co-ordinate a range of free or low cost physical activity sessions for targeted local 
residents. District Councils also work closely with our Leisure Trusts and local 
sports clubs to promote and encourage more sport and physical activity 
participation.

2.5 The report at Appendix 1 sets out the interventions and outcomes being delivered 
by the three district councils to encourage greater participation in sport and physical 
activity.

3. Contact details

Lesley Bowles, Chief Officer Communities and Business, Sevenoaks District 
Council
Sarah Kilkie, Assistant Director (Communities), Gravesham Borough Council
Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services), Dartford Borough Council

Report author: Hayley Brooks, Head of Housing & Health, Sevenoaks District 
Council

4. Background Papers - None



Appendix 1

DGS Health and Wellbeing Board - Work to encourage greater participation in Sport and Physical Activity 

Progress Report – 1 February 2017 

LOCALITIESHI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Local 
Priority:

Promoting sport and exercise opportunities amongst young people

Actions:  Supporting families to maintain 
a healthy weight

 Improve local healthy weight 
care pathways
Maximise opportunities with 
health visiting teams

 Councils Summer Fun 
programme – providing a mix of 
free and paid physical activities 
for young people during school 
summer holidays (including 
trampolining, cricket, rugby and 
more)  goes to every young 
person in the borough

 Annual Kwik Cricket tournament 
(June) for yrs 5 and 6

 Weekly football session 
delivered by Gr@nd youth team 
in partnership with KCC Youth 
Hub at Northfleet youth centre 

 Deliver Family Weight 
Management programme- Don’t 
Sit Get Fit.

 Support families to maintain a 
healthy weight

 Increase interaction between 
parents and children

 Create new opportunities to 
build physical activity into daily 
lives

Objective 1:
Give every 
child the 
best start in 
life

Outcomes: Family Weight Management 
Services  (Don’t Sit Get Fit) 
(Dynamo’s)
 5 Don’t Sit Get Fit were run 

across Dartford during 2015/16 
In targeted schools

 7728 people participated in a 
physical activity during July and 
August

 15 schools, over 150 children 
took part in the 2016 cricket 
event

 15 schools, over 150 children 

Cycling
 Sevenoaks Council is offering 

off road mountain bike courses 
to children aged 11 to 13 living 
in the district. Course due to 
start January 2017.

Family  Weight Management



Page 2 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

 3 Dynamo clubs ran during 
2015/16 to coincide with the 
school term times

 19 families took part 
 22 children completed the 

program (who were above the 
91st centile) 1

 61 families engaged (The 
Annual target for Dartford was 
50)

 16 Children reduced or 
maintained their BMI Z-score 
(Children above 91st centile) 
(72.7%)

 19 Families were given cookery 
sessions with the Community 
Chef in partnership with Sure 
Start

Approximately 100 children 
attended Summer Sizzler events 
with Dartford Early Help workers 

Children’s Centres 
Children aged 0-4year 12 months 
accessing activities include Get 

took part in the 2016 event
 54 Families engaged in 15-16
 Gravesham Sport Relief mile 

took place in March 2016, 2250 
young people were engaged in 
assemblies about the 
importance of keeping fit and 
healthy and volunteering. 100 
people ran between 1 and 3 
miles. 

 Community chef pilot finished 
December 2015. 27 families 
were taught how to cook and 38 
young people were taught to 
cook. 

 SDC is currently running two 
programmes at the Swanley 
youth centre, working in 
partnership with KCC early help 
team to help recruit families 
with children in key stage 1 and 
2. 

 To date, 18 families (21 parents 
and 25 children have all 
engaged with the programme.

1 A BMI above the 91st centile suggests overweight



Page 3 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Cooking and Sporting Events and 
advice from the Tooth Fairy  - 1,706 
reached in Quarters 1 & 2

Fairfield Management Contract, 
Places for People.
Wet Side
 As of April-September: Junior 

Swim Member, casuals and 
under 8’s free swimming – total 
10,579 visits, and 11 schools.

Dry Side
 As of April-September, Junior 

Gym visits, ‘Fit for Sport’ 
Holiday sessions and Junior 
activities – attendance total 
2,705

Junior parkrun - From January 
2016 – an average of 38 
participants per week. 

Summer Sizzlers - 17 partners 
involved with 351 children enrolled 
on the activities delivered by DBC.

Dartford Festival 
 Attendance of 11 organisations 



Page 4 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

related to the delivery of sport, 
physical activity and the wider 
health agenda attended the 
weekend.

DBC Community Grants
 £3,000 awarded to support 

physical activity or the wider 
health agenda

Salute To Youth
 £8272 awarded to support the 

purchase of equipment to 
deliver physical activity.

County Sports Partnership
 Primary School Sports Premium 

with £262,915 allocated to 
Primary Schools in Dartford.

 In January 2016, 13 Dartford 
schools attended the Kent Sport 
Primary PE conference, with a 
further 15  taking part in the 
Kent School games events.  44 
participants took part in the 
disability games.

Issues:  The funding for the Community 
Chef has now finished.  This 
worker had previously 

 Family  Weight Management
 Lack of referrals from GP’s
 No engagement with some 



Page 5 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

supported local authorities, 
schools and health promotion 
activities.

targeted schools

Local 
Priority:

Maximise opportunities for adults to participant in sport and physical activity

Action: Delivery of: 

 Why Weight Adult Weight 
Management Programmes 

 Health Walks 
 Community based Postural 

Stability class 
 Six Ways To Wellbeing 

activities
 Get Active Classes

 New Fairfield leisure 
management contract, Places 
For People (Facility opened 13 
February 2016) 

 Dartford parkrun

 Management of council owned 
football and cricket facilities to 
provide pitches for adult and 
junior teams across the 
borough

 Partnership work with Dels 
fitness to offer free boxing 
sessions during July and 
August 2016. 

 The Gr@nd supported 6 library 
open days and 6 community 
events during July and August 
2016 to promote health and 
physical activity

 Funded by KCC the Gr@nd 
deliver a 12 week adult healthy 
weight programme and a 
Family Weight Management 
programme

 Deliver activities to increase 
physical activity levels and 
reduce obesity

Objective 2: 
Enable all 
children, 
young 
people and 
adults to 
maximise 
their 
capabilities 
and have 
control over 
their lives

Progress: Ongoing Ongoing SDC Free guided cycle rides
 As a result of the Sevenoaks 

Council Olympic legacy project, 
family cycle rides are organised 
each summer in Knole Park and 
Brands hatch. 



Page 6 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Adult Weight Management
 Sevenoaks District Council 

organises up to 7 weight 
management programmes each 
year across the northern parish 
of the District which includes 
getting people physically active.

Outcomes: Adult Weight Management

 Of those 164 who engaged, 63 
lost at least 3% (32.3%). 

 77% of responders increased 
their weekly exercise.

 64.6% of responders have 
increased their fruit and 
vegetable intake.

 52.3% of responders have 
reduced their unhealthy food 
intake.

 44.4% of responders reduced 
their alcohol consumption.

 69% of responders improved 
their mental health

Health Walks - 5  Health Walks 
operating at 5 different locations n 
the Borough – 1,377 attendances

 33% have improved their 
health, fitness, social 
connectivity and mental 

 350 people per week play 
football on council owned 
pitches between September 
and May. 3 teams, around 36 
players use Wombwell Park as 
their home cricket ground

 12 adults and 6 young people 
attended boxing sessions. 

 As a result of community events 
during the summer 718 were 
engaged. As a result 15 families 
were referred into family weight 
management, 1 adult referred 
to Active outdoors, 3 people 
referred to Seniors get Active 
and 11 referred to Adult Healthy 
Weight Programme. 

 In Q1 and Q2 a total of 79 
adults and 25 families have 
been supported to increase 
physical activity and diet to 
achieve a healthier BMI.

 43 People took part in a 
Snowden Hike. 

 217 people reported that they 

SDC Free guided cycle rides
 In the summer of 2016, 6 rides 

in Knole park and 4 rides on the 
brands hatch circuit where 
organised between May and 
September.

 113 people participated in the 
rides, a 50% increase from the 
previous year figures. 

Adult Weight Management
 To date, in the northern 

parishes of the District 
(Swanley, West Kingsdown, 
New Ash Green, Hartley and 
Eynsford, we have worked with 
75 residents who have lost on 
average 3.30% of body weight 
with the highest from one 
individual being 8.96%. Going 
forward, we have a further 45 
residents who have started 
programmes in January 2017.



Page 7 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

wellbeing

Free Community based Postural 
Stability class 

 684 attendances and 76 
sessions were run.

 Over 40% people have 
improved their health, physical 
activity, fitness and social 
connectivity

Six Ways To Wellbeing
February 2016 and Easter 2016 
events at Dartford Library - 50 
engagers received information on 
Six Ways to Wellbeing. 

Dartford Festival. August 2016
21 Health Checks were carried out.  

 Diabetes Event 
5 Health Checks, 2 MOTs by 
Health Trainers and 16 individuals 
complete the Diabetes Risk 
Assessment. 

GET Active
 246 exercise sessions 1614 

better understood the wheel of 
wellbeing. 



Page 8 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

attendances 

 40 people have improved their 
health, over 25 improved their 
fitness, social connections and 
physical activity levels.  38 
people have maintained or 
improved their weight

New Fairfield leisure 
management contract, Places 
For People
 As of September 2016 – 2,841 

Gym/all inclusive.
 644 Swim members and 

resident card holders-1510

Dartford parkrun
 From April to September 2016 - 

an average 141 participants per 
week.

Issues:    Lack of financial resources to 
run more as the demands are 
high.

Local 
Priority:

Support businesses and employees to participant in sport and physical activityObjective 3: 
Create fair 
employment 
& good work 
for all

Action:  Support Kent Healthy 
Businesses Award to increase 
the number of local businesses 

 Workplace Challenge as part of 
the County Sports Partnership 

 Discount offered for GBC staff 
to use facilities in council owned 
leisure facilities 

 Promote and support local 
businesses to achieve KCC 

 Support Kent Healthy 
Businesses Award to increase 
the number of local businesses 

 Work with employers to support 
physical and mental health of 



Page 9 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

via the funding DBC contribution

 Fairfield Management Contract, 
Places For People 

Healthy Business Award their workforce
 Encourage business to adopt a 

healthier environment.

Progress:  Reduced membership fee offers 
to DBC employees.

 Networking and involvement 
with local business.

 Kent Healthy Business Award
 Sevenoaks District Council’s 

environmental health team 
continue to engage with 
businesses across the district to 
sign them up to an award 
standard.

 Sevenoaks Council is in the 
final stages of achieving the 
level 2 award.

Outcomes:   23 staff members have taken 
advantage of the corporate 
membership

 6 Gravesham Businesses 
achieved the Award.

Kent Healthy Business Award 
 1 business has signed a 

declaration of intent to become 
a healthy business, with an 
additional 3 engaged with the 
process.

 The awards continue to be 
advertised through food hygiene 
visits, mailshots, networking 
events, and the Sevenoaks 
Business Show.

Issues:  Engagement of businesses 
slow for the Healthy Business 
Awards

  There has been reluctance from 
partners to engage with this 
project, which combined with 
the business landscape has led 
to KCC reducing the targets for 



Page 10 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

the project.

Local 
Priority:

Community based opportunities for sport and physical activity participation

Action:  Increase the opportunities for 
participating in sporting, cultural 
and leisure activities.

 Work with local sports clubs 
organisations to support 
delivery of sports sessions eg. 
Parkrun, Meopham Ladies Back 
to Hockey sessions, back to 
netball sessions, Gravesend 
Rowing Club, Gravesham and 
Wellcome Hockey Club, 
Gravesham Girls FC, LTA Local 
Tennis League

 Walking Football delivered in 
partnership with Cyclopark and 
EUFC

 12 week Adult Healthy Weight 
Programme funded by KCC 
Public Health

 Weekly Seniors Get Active 
Sessions take place at the 
Gr@nd

 Offer FREE to low cost 
activities in the community.

 Increase sporting opportunity 
for people living in the District.

 Deliver activities to increase 
physical activity levels and 
reduce obesity

Progress: Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing

Objective 4: 
Ensure 
healthy 
standards of 
living for all

Outcomes: Dartford Borough Council

 Leased Leisure, 14 property 
leases to groups and 
organisations who deliver 
community based activity, these 

 249 people from the sessions 
run above have joined a new 
sports club

 14 men engaged in Walking 
Football. 

 16 regular participants in 

Feel Good Shapemaster
 Early in the year Sencio 

unveiled 12 new state of the art 
shapemaster exercise 
machines with provide an 
alternative, low impact way to 



Page 11 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

include buildings, open space 
and open water. Support is 
given to these organisations 
either/or through the lease 
agreement or through direct 
contact..

Delivery of Fairfield Leisure 
Management Contract, Princes 
Park mini pitches

 Enabler for events, through 
allowing organisations under 
licence to access DBC land to 
organise and deliver events. 
One unique relationship is The 
Bridge Events, who deliver 
triathlon events for adults and 
children including an Ironman 
distance race which goes 
through the night and a number 
of running races all based at the 
The Bridge Estate.
 

 Funding, delivery of £43,000 
worth of DBC grant funding 
through Community Grants and 
Salute To Youth. 

 Pitches and pitch bookings- 3 
pitches 6 teams at swan lane 
and 3 pitches and 4 teams at 
Acacia

Seniors Get Active.
 In 15-16: 135 people aged 60-

104 years old took part in gentle 
exercise or seniors get active 
classes.  As a result 18 people 
reported an improvement in 
Blood Pressure, 17 people 
reported that they had improved 
or maintained the ability to get 
from a seat to standing, 40 
people sustained or improved 
ability to march for 1 minute. 

exercise for those who aren’t 
attracted to gyms or may have 
health or mobility concerns.


Table Tennis
 The 20 week table tennis 

programme continues to run at 
the Orchard Academy School 
Number engaged to date - 26. 
Regular participation in physical 
activity ( 1 hour per week)

 Of those participating in the 
project, 4 boys to date have 
joined affiliated at Sutton at 
Hone TT club on their Friday 
sessions.



Page 12 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

County Sports Partnership
 four Sportivate projects to the 

combined value of £3,956 were 
supported in Dartford.

 In 2015-16, one coach 
scholarship grant was allocated 
in Dartford, with a value of 
£150, two small grants were 
allocated in Dartford, to a total 
of £300.

 25 Dartford clubs registered 
with Kent Sport Connect, 11 
new Dartford coaches 
registered on the Coaches 
Register.

 Two Connected Workshops 
courses were held in Dartford 
with 16 residents attending.

 National Sports People (FANS) 
Scheme has 11athletes are 
based in Dartford with access 
arrangements with four facilities 
being in Dartford.

 Talented Performers, in 
Dartford, three grants were 
awarded, to the value of 



Page 13 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

£2,000.

 In Dartford 12 Satellite Clubs 
were registered, with all of 
these active during 2015-16, 
and a total of £12,389 invested.

Issues:    Lack of Funding to expand due 
to demand

Local 
Priority:

Develop our communities to be healthy places including parks and open spaces for physical activity 

Action:  Develop green parks, green 
spaces, and public rights of 
way.

 Continue to develop and 
support facilities to allow 
opportunities for increased 
participation in sporting, 
cultural and leisure activities.

 Installation of walking trails in 
borough parks

 Installation of new play facilities 
at Woodlands Park

 Pages 116-124 of Gravesham 
Local Plan Core Strategy – 
identify GBC policies Green 
Infrastructure (CS12)  and 
Green Space, Sport and 
Recreation (CS13) here.

 An Open Space, Sport and 
Recreation Assessment, 
Strategy and Action Plan is 
being carried out – please see 
here

 Increase awareness of the open 
space in the local area.

 Reduce social isolation
 Helps with a variety of long term 

conditions including, Arthritics, 
Blood pressure, weight loss, 
post op recovery and mental 
health 

Objective 5: 
Create & 
develop 
healthy 
sustainable 
places & 
communities

Progress:  Continue to provide inclusive 
playgrounds and facilities in 
parks and open spaces to 
encourage public usage.

 Health walks
 We still continue to run walks in 

Swanley, West Kingsdown, 
New Ash Green, Hartley, and 
Lullingstone.

http://selfservice.gravesham.gov.uk:8081/webdocs/planning/Gravesham-Local-Plan-Core-Strategy-September-2014.pdf?_ga=1.179205220.1998713615.1468914707
http://www.gravesham.gov.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0011/239888/Key-Technical-Studies.pdf


Page 14 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Outcomes:  New aerial runway being 
installed in Central Park 
playground funded via SUEZ 
Communities Trust (formerly 
SITA Trust) plus extensive 
repairs being carried out to 
climbing frame equipment in 
Jessamine playground. 
Additional fully inclusive 
trampoline and Titan unit 
installed in Central Park during 
15/16.

 Volunteer groups
Darenth Country Park and 
Dartford Heath, undertaking 
maintenance tasks.

 Dartford Half Marathon, Bubble 
Rush, Colour Run, parkrun.  

 Completion of £12 million 
rebuild and enhancement to 
Fairfield, total visits to the 
facility between February-
September 271,851.

 Completion of a £1.5 million 
pavilion and nets for Dartford 
Cricket Club.

 First site installed in October 
2016 (Woodlands), Camer Park 
to be installed in the next few 
months

 Play site officially opened in 
October 2016 

 Gym Activation project funded 
by KCC public health

 'Take Notice walk' delivered in May 
2016 as part of National walking 
month

active outdoors project  started 
June 6th 2015 and finished August 
29th 2016 with a winter break in the 
middle due to weather. 20 adults 
participated across the year using 
two outdoor gyms in Woodlands 
Park and the Promenade.



Health Walks
 Across all the walks we have 

had an attendance of 4000 
between March and December, 
which is an increase from the 
previous year. Our Hartley walk 
achieving on average 63 of 
residents each week.

 Comments from evaluation;

“Walk is varied and a perfect length 
for me.  Walk is enjoyable, with 
always someone to talk to”

“It gets me outside and in the fresh 
air and meeting like minded people 
who I've formed a friendship”



Page 15 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

 £290K refurbishment and 
enhancement of Central Park 
Athletics Track, home of 
Dartford Harriers.

 £200,000 refurbishment of 
Princes Park artificial turf pitch.

 Working with Dartford Valley 
Rugby Football Club, on 
developing them a permanent 
facility.

Issues:

Local 
Priority:

Targeted physical activity for those with long term condition or disabilities including cardio Rehab etc.Objective 6: 
Strengthen 
the role and 
impact of ill 
health 
prevention 

Action:  Delivery of Fairfield 
Management Contract, Places 
For People

 Health Matters programme 
(previously funded by DBC) 
Support individual to improve 
self-management of long term 
conditions. 

 Other health and wellbeing, 
activities delivered at the centre 
by outside bodies.

 Gentle Exercise sesions 
delivered across the borough

 Seniors Get Active sessions 
delivered at the Gr@nd twice 
weekly. 

 'Swing Away the Stress' 
delivered as part of world mental 
Health day October 2016. 10 
week course in partnership with 
Gravesend Golf Club for 
vulnerable adults with mental 
health needs

 Deliver activities to increase 
physical activity levels.

 Deliver inclusive fitness with  
opportunities for people with 
disabilities



Page 16 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Progress: On Going Cardiac Rehab 
 Sencio community leisure runs 

the take heart session at there 
white oak site in Swanley. To 
participate on the programme 
you have to be referred by a 
GP.

Yoga
 We continue to run the yoga 

sessions at the south Darenth 
residential home.

Postural Stability
 Our postural stability class at 

the white oak residential home 
has seen an increase in 
attendance over the last couple 
of month.

Outcomes: Fairfield Management Contract, 
Places For People.

 COPD assessments and 
exercise classes, Rebound 
Therapy for disabled adults and 
archery for disabled adults 
(delivered by Kent CC).

Health Matters
46 New Direct Debit Members in 
Qtrs 1 and 2

 5 males engaged in Golf Project Cardiac Rehab
 The class has had an overall 

attendance of 2,563 which is 
over 100 more than the target 
set at this stage.

Yoga
 To date, we have 400 

attendances, with 3 new 
comers..

 Comment from evaluation;

“A very good class very helpful and 



Page 17 of 17

HI ACTION 
PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

DETAIL LOCALITIES
Dartford Gravesham Swanley

Other targeted activities include:
Chair based classes, Sports 
Morning, 50+ low Impact Aerobics, 
Nordic Walking, Lower Back Rehab 

informative, has helped me cope 
with my aches and pains”

Postural Stability
 To date, we have recorded 300 

attendances, with 3 new 
comers.

 Comment from evaluation;

“The overall benefit from this class 
is amazing. My shoulders and 
knees are so much better as is my 
general wellbeing. Very grateful”

Issues:   Lack of funding in the 
community to deliver more yoga 
and postural stability sessions 
for those on the waiting list. 





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

1 FEBRUARY 2017
Agenda Item 

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group (Member Services) 

Subject: Action Points Arising From Previous Meeting(s) of the DGS HWB

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
The report details progress against action points arising from the previous meeting(s).

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any item should be added to the forward work plan to enable a more 
detailed discussion at a future meeting.

1. Background and discussion

Meeting 
first 
raised

Minute/Item Action taken/to be taken Lead

7/12/2016 Min  33 – 
New 
District 
Health 
Deal

Board to receive update on plans for North Kent 
‘district deal’ once discussions further advanced – 
transferred to Work Plan Items to be Scheduled - 
Done

Districts/ 
PH

7/12/2016 Min 38 – 
Board 
Work 
Programme

Board to receive update on falls prevention work 
and outcomes in order to report back to Kent Board 
– on this Agenda - Done

KCC/CCG

1 Conclusion and Recommendations
The Board is asked to:

Note the action points arising from previous meeting(s) and subsequent action, and 
consider whether any additional item should be added to the forward work plan to 
enable a more detailed discussion at a future meeting, or any other action taken.

3 Contact details

Neil Murphy, Committee Coordinator, Dartford Borough Council, 
email: neil.murphy @dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





DARTFORD, GRAVESHAM AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

1 FEBRUARY 2017
Agenda Item x

______________________________________________________________________________

1

From: Executive Group 

Subject: DGS Health and Wellbeing Board Work Plan

Classification: Unrestricted

Summary:
This report proposes items for inclusion in the Board’s forward work plan.

Recommendations

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

1. Background and discussion

1.1 The work plan schedules update reports from the Local Children’s Partnership 
Groups (previously Children’s Operational Groups) and Health Inequalities Groups. 

1.2 The work plan also gives advance notice of other items which the Board has 
indicated that it wishes to consider, or that the Kent Board has asked it to consider.

1.3 The work plan does not preclude matters not on the work plan being submitted to any 
meeting of the Board with the agreement of the Chairman.

1.4 The Board will have an opportunity at each meeting to consider its work plan and add 
items, particularly key plans and strategies, when the timing of such is known.  

2 Conclusion and Recommendations
The work plan ensures the Health and Wellbeing Board receives regular reports from 
those sub-Groups managing the key areas of the Board’s business and gives advance 
notice of other matters to be discussed. The Board is asked to:

Consider and approve the forward work plan, subject to any amendments or 
additions that the Board wishes to make. 

3 Contact details

Sheri Green, Strategic Director (External Services), Dartford Borough Council, 
email:sheri.green@dartford.gov.uk

4. Background Papers - None





1

DARTFORD GRAVESEND AND SWANLEY HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD

1 FEBRUARY 2017
Agenda Item 

APPENDIX A
Dartford, Gravesham and Swanley HWB Forward Work Plan

Meeting Topic Suggested 
Lead

April 2017 Adolescent Mental Health Service – including 
update on new commissioned service

CCG (Dr Lunt)

Mental Health and the impact on other services 
(Kent Police invited)
Report on 1st year of new Drug and Alcohol 
Abuse Service

PH/CGL

Alcohol Strategy Update – final report PH/CGL 

New Drugs and Alcohol Strategy PH

June 2017 Report from Local Children’s Partnership Groups LCPGs
(Nick Moor)

August 
2017

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

JSNA - Assessment of the effectiveness of local services relating to the identified 
service priorities
Employability & Health – GP Education
New District Health Deal - Board to receive update on plans for North Kent ‘district 
deal’ once discussions further advanced




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Kent County Council Health and Wellbeing Board
	5 Review of Falls Prevention Actions
	2016 07 05 PS referral from - V2.4

	6 Sports Club Funding
	DGS HWB Physical Activity Appendix 1 010217

	8 Actions Outstanding from Previous Meetings.
	10 Board Work Programme
	20170201 Work Plan Appendix


